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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 27th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the
Shareholders of CRYSTAL LAGE (INDIA) LIMITED will be held on Monday, September
7, 2020 at 4.00 P.M. through Video conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Video Mode
(OAVM) to transact the following business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31t March, 2020 and the
Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the period ended on that date and the Reports of
the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Raj Kumar Sekhani (DIN 00102843) who retires by

rotation and being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For CRYSTAL LACE (INDIA} LIMITED

ot

Place : Mumbai RAJ KUMAR SEKHANI
Date i 29t June, 2020 (DIRECTOR) DIN

NO.00102843
NOTES:

1. In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA")
has vide its circular dated May 5, 2020 read with circulars dated April 8, 2020 and April
13, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the
“AGM” through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (CAVM),
without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. Accordingly, in
compliance with the provisions of the Act, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the
AGM of the Company.is being held through VC / OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and
vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on
his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is
being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OQAVM, physical attendance of
Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies
by the Members will not be available for the Annual General Meeting and hence the
Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to the Notice.
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T - 3.

1he documents mentioned in the Notice of the Meeting are available for inspection to the
Members of the Company at the registered office of the Company during business hours.

w

4. Corporate Members intending to send their Authorised Representatives to attend the
Meeting are requested to send a Certified true Copy of the Board Resolution authorizing
their Representative to attend and vote at the Meeting on their behalf.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,
CRYSTAL LACE (INDIA) LIMITED

Yours Directors are pleased to present the 27t Annual Report together with the Audited

Accounts for the year ended on 31st March, 2020

1. Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company

(" In Lakhs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Total Income 53.47 17.12
Less: Expenditure (before depreciation, interest 58.40 27.80
and tax)
Net Profit {before exceptional item and tax) (4.93) {10.68)
Less: Exceptional items - -
Net Profit /(Loss) (before tax) (4.93) (10.68)
Less: Provision for Tax -~ -
Profit /(Loss) from continuing operations {(4.93) (10.68)
Profit /(Loss) from discontinuing operations (5.96) (9.96)
Profit /(Loss) For the year (14.89) (20.64)

The revenue of the company during the year stood at “53.47 lakhs as compared to *17.12
lakhs in previous Year. The Company has decreased Loss of " 14.89 lakhs during the year as

compared to Loss of ~20.64 lakhs in previous Year.

2. Dividend:

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year, so as to conserve the resources.

3. Reserves:

In view of the losses, the Company does not propose to carry any amount to reserves.

4. Brief Description of the Company’s Working durin

The Company is involved in trading of Embroideries Fabric & Laces.

5. Change in Nature of Business, if any:

There was no change in the nature of business.

P

the Year/State Of Company’s Affair:
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Material changes and commitments, if any, affectin the financial position of the Compan
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the

financial statements relate and the date of the report:

Your Directors’ further states that there are no material changes have taken place affecting the
financial position of the Company from the date of closure of financial year till the signing of
Accounts.

=

7. Details of Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals

impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future:

No material orders have been passed by Regulator or any Court or any Tribunal which can
impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

8. Details of Subsidiary Companies:

The Company does not have any subsidiary / Joint Ventures.

5. Deposits:

During the year the Company has not accepted any Deposits falling within the preview of
Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under.

10. Statutory Auditors:

The Statutory Auditors M/s. Parag G. Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai
having ICAI Firm Registration No. 122403W was appointed to hold office as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a period of five (5) consecutive year till the conclusion of
Annual General Meeting to be held in 2023.

The Company had received certificates M/s. Parag G. Shah & Associates, Chartered

Accountants, confirming their eligibility and willingness for their appointment pursuant to
Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

11. Share Capital:

During the year under review, there is no change in Share Capital of the Company.

12, Auditors” Report:

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do
not call for any further comments. There are no observations/qualifications contained in the
Auditors’ Report and therefore there are no explanations to be provided for in this report.

13. Extract of the Annual Return:

In accordance with Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of the annual return
in Form No. MGT-9 is appended as Annexure “A” of the Board's Report.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

The particulars as prescribed under Sub-section (3) (m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as follows:

A} Conservation of energy: NIL
B) Technology absorption: NIL

C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo; NIL

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

There were no changes in Directors or Key Managerial Person by way of appointment, re-
designation, death or disqualification, variation made or withdrawn.

Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors met Five (05) times during the Financial Year. The intervening gap
between any two meetings was not more than 120 days as prescribed by the Companies Act,
2013. Details of date of Board meeting are as under;

Sr. No. | Type of Meeting . Date
1. Board Meeting 27/05/2019
2. Board Meeting 14/08/2019
3. Board Meeting 30/10/2019
4. Board Meeting 18/12/2019
5. Board Meeting 11/02/2020

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investinents under Secton 186:

The Company has not given any loans or made investment during the financial year as
applicable under section 186 of the Companies, Act 2013.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties:

There were no materially significant transactions with related parties during the financial year
which were in conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosure as required by the
Accounting Standards (AS-18) has been made in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Managerial Remuneration:

A) Details of every employee of the Company as required pursuant to 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 - Not Applicable

B) Any director who is in receipt of any commission from the Company and who'is a Managing
Director or Whole-time Director of the Company shall’ receive any remuneration or
commission from any Holding Company or Subsidiary Company of such Company subject
to its disclosure by the Company in the Board's Report. - Not Applicable
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20. Risk Management Policy;

21.

22,

23.

24,

In the opinjon of the Board no element of risk exists which threaten the existence of the
Company.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

As stipulated under clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your
Directors subscribe to the Directors Responsibility Statement and state that:

a) In preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation and there are no material departures from them;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as fo give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and loss of the Company
for that period;

¢) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

€) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Corporate Social Responsibility:

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social
Responsibility are not applicable as the Company is not falling under the said parameters.

Internal Financial Controls:

The Company has an Internal Financials Control system, commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations.

Disclosure as per Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

Pursuant to Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Wortkplace (Prevenhon,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 read with Rule 14, the internal authorized person under the
said act has confirmed that no complaint/case has been filed/pending with the Company
during the year. -
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25. Acknowledosements:

The Directors wishes to place on record their sense of appreciation of the devoted services
rendered by the Executives, Staff and Workers for the continuous growth and success. Your
Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
received from the Bankers, Government authorities, customers, vendors and members during
the year under review.

For & on behalf of the Board
For CRYSTAL LACE (INDIA) LIMITED

%, \fvw—_‘

RAJ KUMAR SEKHANI
Director
DIN: 00102843

Place : Mumbai HARSH VARDHAN BASSI
Date : 29 June, 2020 Director

DIN: 00102941



FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on March 31, 2020

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Companies
{Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U17291MH1994PLC0O76439

Registration Date

4TH FEBRUARY, 1994

Name of the Company

Crystal Lace (India) Limited

v [Category/Sub-category of the Company |Company Limited by Shares/ India Non-Government
Company
v Address of the Registered office Unit 101b, 1st Fir, Abhishek Premises,
& contact details Plot No.C5-6, Dalia Ind. Est.,
Off. New Link Road, Andheri (West)
Mumbai-400058.
Tel No.:{022)42232323
Fax No.: {022}42232313
vi_ |Whether listed company Unlisted
vii [Name, Address & contact detalls of the N.A.
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.
1] PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY {Financial Year 2019-2020)
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated
Sr. No. {Name & Description of main products/ services NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
Product /service the company
i Embroidered Fabric, Laces, Crochet Laces 13991 100.00
m PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sr. No. Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY/ % OF APPLICABLE
ASSQCIATE SHARES | SECTION
HELD
1 PIONEER EMBROIDERIES LIMITED  Unit|L17291MH1991PLC063752 | SUBSIDIARY COMPANY | 44.58% 2(46}

101b, 1st Fir, Abhishek Premises, Plot
No.C5-6, Dalia Ind, Est.,

Off. New Link Road,

Andheri (W) Mumbai-400058




v SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % of total Equity) (Financial Year 2019-2020)
(i} _ Category-wise Share Holding:-
Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the|No. of Shares held at the end of the year|% change
year during
Demat | Physical Total %of |Demat| Physical Total % of |theyear
Total Total

A. Promoters
{1} Indian

4 Individual/HUF - S00008] 500008]  5.07 500008 500008] 5.07] -
b) Central Govt. - . - _ N _ N - .
¢} State Govt. - . - _ N R N N .
d) Badies Corporates - 7891420| 7891420] "79.95] - 7891420 7891420 79.95 -
e) Bank/FI - - N R - . _ - -
1) Any other - - R - N - - - .
SUB TOTAL(A) (1): - 8391428 8391428 s8s.02] - 8391428| 8391428 85.02 -
{2) Foreign R - . . - N N - .
a} NRI- Individuals - - - . . _ - - R
b} Other Individuals - - - _ - . N - .
¢} Bodies Corp. - - - . R - N - .
d) Banks/FI - - . . - - - - .
e) Any other... - - R N - - - - .

SUB TOTAL (A} (2): N . - B . _ N - B
Total Shareholding of Promoter -

(A= (AN1)+A)(2) 8391428 8391428 s85.02| - 8391428| 8391428| 85.02

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING - - - - - - - - -

(1) Institutions - - - - - - - - -

a) Mutual Funds - - - R R R R . _

b) Banks/F - - - - - - - - -

C) Cenntral govt - - R N . R . N N

d) State Govt.{s) - - - - - - - - -

€} Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - .

f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -

g} Flis - 1478930| 1478930 14.98| - 1473930| 1478930 14.98 -

h} Foreign Venture - - - - - - - - .

i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -

SUBTOTAL (B){1): - 1478930 1478930| 14.98) - 1478930| 1478930 14.98 -

(2) Non Institutions - -

a) Bodies corporates - - - - - - - R -

i} Indian - - . - - - _ R -

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -

b} Individuals - - . _ N R . - -

i} Individual shareholders holding - 12 12 0.00 - 12 12 0.00 -
nominal share capital upto Rs.1 lakh

ii) Individuals shareholders holding - - - - - - - - -
nominal share capital in excess of Rs.
1 lakh

¢} Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -

i} Nen -Resident Indian - - . - - - - _ -

ii} Clearing Members - - R - - - - - -

iii) Directors & their relatives - - - - - - - - -

iv) Trust - - - . -. - - R -

SUB TOTAL {B)}(2): - 12 12 0.00 - 12 12 0.00 -

Total Public Shareholding ) - -
(B)= (BI2}+{B)(2} - 1478942| 1478942 14.98 - 1478942; 1478942 14.98

C. Shares held by Custodian for - - - - I - - -
GDRs & ADRs : :

Grand Total {A+B+C) - 9870370| 9870370 100.00| -. 9870370 9370310 100.00 -




(il SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

‘beginning of the Year

— ,
§r. No. |Shareholders Name Shareholding at the begginning of |Shareholding at the end of the year| % change
the year in share
No of | % of total |% of shares Noof |[9% of total |% of holding
shares shares [pledged/ shares shares [shares during the
ofthe |encumbere of the |pledged/ year
company |d to total company |encumber
shares ed to total
shares
1 |Raj Kumar Sekhani 500003 5.07 - 500003 5.07 - 0.00
2 [Pioneer Embroideries Limited 4400000 44.58 - 4400000 44,58 - 0.00
3 Pioneer E-com Fashions LLP 3491420 35.37 - 3491420 315,37 - 0.00
4 |Aarav Sekhani 2 0.00 2 0.00 - 0.00
5 [|Harsh Vardhan Bassi 3 0.00 - 3 0.00 - 0.00
Total 8391428 85.02 - 8391428 85.02 - 0.00
(i) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE])
Sr. No. |Particulars Share holding at the Cumulative

Shareholding during

the year
No.of |%oftotal| No.of | % of total
Shares sharesof | Shares | sharesof
the the
company company
At the beginning of the year 8391428 85.02
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding during the No Change [No Change| No Change| No Change
year specifying the reasons for increase /decrease
{e.g.allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year 8391428 85.02
{iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)
5r. No. (For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the Cumulative
beginning of the Year | Shareholding during
the year
No. of % of total No.of | % of total
Shares sharesof | Shares | sharesof
the the
1 |M/s. Crystal Holding Limited

At the beginning of the year 974990 9.88
Bought during the year No Change | No Change |No Change| No Change|
Sold during the year No Change | No Change [No Change| No Change
At the end of the year 974990 9.8




2 |M/s. Miaann Holding Limited
At the beginning of the year 503940 5.10
Bought during the year No Change | No Change [No Change| No Change
Sold during the year No Change | No Change |No Change| No Change
At the end of the year 503940 5.10
{v} Shareholding of Directors & KviP
Sr. No. |For Each of the Directors & KMP Shareholding at the Cumulative
' beginning of the Year |Shareholding during
the year
No.of [%oftotal] Noof | % oftotal
shares | sharesof | shares | sharesof
the the
1 |Raj Kumar Sekhani
At the beginning of the year 500003 5.07
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding during the No Change |No Change| No Change | No Change
year specifying the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year 500003 5.07
2 |Harsh Vardhan Bassi

At the beginning of the year 3 0.00

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

No Change |No Change| No Change| No Change

At the end of the year

0.00




V  INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Total
excluding deposits tndebtedness
Indebtness at the beginning of the financial - -
i) Principal Amount - -
ii) Interest due but not paid - -
iii} interest accrued but not due - -
Total (i+ii+iii) - -
Change in Indebtedness during the financial - -
Additions - -
Reduction(Net) - -
Net Change - -
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year - -
i} Principal Amount - -
ii) Interest due but not paid - -
iii} Interest accrued but not due - -
Total (i+ii+iii) - -

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: NIL

Sr.No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount

Chairman MD

1 |Gross salary - - -

(a) Salary as per provisions contained
insection 17(1) of the  Income
Tax. 1961. - - -

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of
the Income tax Act, 1961

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3} of the Income Tax Act,
1961

2 |Stock option - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commission - - -

as % of profit - - -
others (specify) - - -
5 |Others, please specify - - -
Total {A) - - -
Ceiling as per the Act - ' - -

B.  Remuneration to other directors: (Financial Year 2019-2020):-NIL

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD {Financial Year 2019-
2020):- NIL




VIl PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES (Financiai Year 2019-2020):-NIL
Type Section of  |Brief Details of Penalty/ |Authority Appeall made
the Description Punishment/ (RD/NCLT/ |if any {give
Companies Compounding faee  1Court] details)
) Act imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
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rarag G. Shah & Associates ,
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members of Crystal Lace India Limited,

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Crystal Lace India Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of
Profit & Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the Cash

Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133
of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its Loss, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements Section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements theiit are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Geing Concern

The Company’s has accumulated losses and its net worth (excluding revaluation reserve) has fully eroded
due to continuous losses; has incurred cash loss in the current year and preceding year and uncertainties
on recovery of assets. We were informed that the Company is in process of selling its fixed assets
consisting of leasehold land and building and also in the process of identifying alternative business plans
to improve the performance of the Company.

The above factors cast a significant uncertainty on the Company’s ability to continue as‘a going concern.
Pending the resolution of the above uncertainties, the Company has prepared the aforesaid statement on a
going concern basis,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Key Audit Matters:-

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. ' =

B-24, Mahavir Nagar, 1st Floor, Factory Lane, L. T. Road, Borivali (W), Mumbai - 400 092.
Tel.: +91 22 2898 2948 « Cell : +91 98697 88636 = Email :‘shahparagg@gmail.com
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Chartered Accountants Cont. Sheet

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon:-

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance

™1 " L 1 s . - o~ L. Fal lat s aTataba =k} !
and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or- our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatemnent of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

thisregard.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view: of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility -also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a frue and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements. ' -

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: :

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those. risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one regults
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresent: ic
internal controls. ' BRI I’%

-
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» Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for express:ng our opinion on whether the Company has adequate mternal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists reIated to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as’a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactlons and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materlahty is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, 1nd1v1dua11y or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and quahtatlve factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. ¢

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit. '
J ’

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters commmunicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare c1rcumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communicaton

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:-

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 issued by the Ceritral Government
in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to the ?Order”), and on
the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in theJAnnexure "A" a

statement on them matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
1

2. As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has-not paid any
remuneration to its Directors during the year and hence the provisions of and limits laid down
under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable.
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....................

3. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. :

er books of account as required by law have been kept by ‘the Company so

, prope account as req

far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢} The financial statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the boc-J:hi s of account.

(@) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accoxiiinting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

(e) On the basis of the wriften representations received from the directors as oﬁ March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified-as on March 31,
2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
” Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accotdance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according fo the explanations given to us: :

i. the Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending lifigations on its financial position in
its financial statements; .

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses; o

iii. there is no amount that is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company. . !

iv. the disclosure requirements relating- to holdings as well as dealings in speé{fied bank notes
were applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not
relevant to these financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Parag G. Shah & Associates,
Chartered Accounfants .
Firm's Registration Number: 122403W

- .BU\
T lesoX (—;}\

‘_\'0_,&-\ S
_ Parag G. Shah
Place: Mumbai Proprietor §
Date: June 29, 2020 Membership Number: 111780

UDIN No. 20111780AAAAAF7808
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements, of the

Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Crystal Lace India Limited on the financial

TR I R S s
staternents for the year ended March 31, 2020.

i. In respect of the Company'’s fixed assets, !
a) The Company is generally maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. :

b) As explained to us, fixed assets, according to the practice of the Company, are physically
verified by the management in accordance with the phased verification program, which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and the nature of its
fixed assets. No material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. '

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records exan}ined by us, we
report that the Company does not hold any freehold, are held in the name of the Company as
at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land and building that have
been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed assets in the financial statements, the lease
agreements are in the name of the Company.

i, The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties and goods in transit
has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management. In respect of inventory lying
with the third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies
noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material
and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of the Company. -

iii. According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any loan,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties
covered in the register required under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (iii) of the order is not applicable. o

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
' 1,
has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of the loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities except that such loans are given interest free,

V. In qur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us; the Company
has not accepted deposits, in terms of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed
there under. ¥

vi. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost:records under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the activities of thencompany and
accordingly paragraph 3 (vi) of the order is not applicable. ‘

e

vii. a) Inrespectof Statutory Dues: £
According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, erfiployees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, v{alue added tax,
cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There are ino undisputed
statutory dues which are in arrears, as at March 31, 2020 _for a period of more El_\an six months
from the date they became payable. ' -




D, s Y QL1 :
carag {s. Snan & Associates

Chartered Accountants Cont. %heet

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, details of dues E'_(})f income-tax or
sales-tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added taxior other material
statutory dues, which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2020 on account of any dispute
are given below: b

Particulars Year to which the Forum where |~ Amount
matter pertains matter is pending {
Navi Mumbai Municipal | April 2006- March Mumbai High | 14001996
Corporation 2014 Court il
Viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, fche Company has

not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions and;banks during the
year, The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from government or through

debentures. P
|
ix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did
not raise moneys by way of further public offer (including debt instruments). .
X. According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the| company or any
fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reporte(i;i'. during the year.
b
xi. According to the information and explanations given to us, no managerial rentuneration has
been paid or provided by the Company. i
xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is not
applicable to the Company. -
i, According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactionsi_wiﬂ't the related

parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements, as required by the applicable Irid. AS,

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company l'éas not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of equity shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the order are not applicable.

XV, According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them coveﬁ'r_ed under Section
192 of the Act.
xvi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is ﬁ?t required to be
B

registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Parag G. Shah & Assoc;iates,
Chartered Accountants

Tat S

Parag G. Shah
Place: Mumbai Proprietor )

Date: June 29, 2020 Membership Number: 1117
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Annexure "B" to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reportmg of Crystal Lace India lelted
(“the Company™), as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial state nts of the
Company for the year ended on that date. :

3

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘'ICAL).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of a&equate internal
financial controls that were operating effectlvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial contrgls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidan¢e Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over fmanc1al reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all matenal respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequagy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an unde1stand1ng of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness @xists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frand or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prowde a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reportmg

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reportmg
it

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepara'tion of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policiesiand procedures
that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately anqL fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonablb assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements infaccordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of ma.nagement and directors of the ddmpany, and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorlbed acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the fma51c1al statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting e
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reportmg, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation: of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk 1ﬂ1at the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changesiin conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. i
Opinion }
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reportmg and such internal financial controls over ﬁnanaa.('reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal confrol stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 1ssued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

1‘

For Parag G. Shah & Assocrates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Reglstratmn Numbé 122403W
7
|
i

W.ﬁ—/
PRS- —%’i\—-’
Parag G. Shah
Place: Mumbai Proprietor
Date: June 29, 2020 Membership Number: 111780

UDIN No. 20111780AAAAAF7808

H




Crystal Lace (India) Limited
Regd Office: 101-B, Abhishek Premises, Plot No. C5-6, Dalia Industrial Estate,
Off New Link Road, Andheri (W), Mumbai 400058
Balance Sheet as at March,2020

(Rs. in lakhs)

: Note As at As at
Particulars March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
I ASSETS
1 Non-Current Asseis
(@) Property, Plant & Equipments - -
(b) Financial Assets
(i} Other Non-Current Financial Assets 3 - 2m 2.05
2 Current Assets
(a) Inventories 4 347.96 39031
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 5 113.45 65.61
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 0.95 0.84
it} Other Current Financial Assets 7 186.97 188.20
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 8 0.28 0.28
(d) Assets held for sale 9 803.86 827 46
1,455.48 1,483.75
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 10 987.04 987.04
(b) Other Equity 11 {(743.39) (714.85)
2 Current Liabilities
{(a) PFinancial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables 12 160.67 160.40
{(if) Other Current Financial Liabilities 13 1.16 1.16
(b) Other Current Liabilities 14 1,050.00 1,050.00
1,455.48 1,483.75
Significant Accounting Policies and other Notes to 1-31

Financial Statements.

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date
For Parag G. Shah & Associates,

Chartered Accountants
{Firm Regn No. 1

R gl @ ¥_b\i';/v

Parag G. Shah Proprietor Membership
No. 111780 Place: Mumbai

Date: June 29, 2020

UDIN NO.20111780A AAAAF7808

For & on behalf of the Board

RAJ KUMAR SEKHANI
Director

DIN NO.00102843

HARSH VARDHAN BASSI
Director
DIN NO.00102941




Crystal Lace (India) Limited

Regd Office: 101-B, Abhishek Premises, Plot No. C5-6, Dalia Industrial Estate,
Off New Link Road, Andheri (W), Mumbai 400058

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31,2020

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Note For the yearended  For the year ended
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
A CONTINUING OPERATIONS
I REVENUE ‘
Revenue from Operations 15 53.47 1712
Other Income - -
Total Revenue 53.47 17.12
II EXPENSES :
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade - -
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods and Stock-in-Trade 16 5099 25.07
Employee Benefits Expenses 17 144
Other Expenses 13 5.97 - 273
Total Expenses 58.40 27.80
II  Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (I - ) 4.93) (10.68)
IV Tax Expenses - -
V Profit/{Loss) from Continuing Operations (LI - v) (493} (10.68)
B DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS
VI Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations before Tax
Other Income from Discontinuing Operations - -
Expenses on Discontinuring Operations - -
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense ) 9 9.96 9.96
Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations (V1) {9.96) {9.96)
Frofit/(Loss) for the year (V + VI) (14.89) (20.64)
VII Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss (Net of - -
Tax)
vIII Other Comprehensive Income for the year (B} - -
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (A+B) (14.89) (20.64)
X Earning per Equity Share of Rs. 10: 30
(1) Basic {Rs.) (0.15) (0.21)
{2) Diluted (Rs.) (0.15) {0.21)

1-31
Significant Accounting Policies and other Notes to Financial Statements.
The accompanying Notes are integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our Report of even date attached herawith
For Parag G. Shah & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No. 122403w)

For & on behalf of the Board

%];\MP

T, Lh

oA RAJ KUMAR SEKHANI
R Director
DIN NC.00102843

4,

A8 TERED .
Parag G. Shah Proprietor Membersht
111780 Place: Mumbai ; :

Date: June 29, 2020 HARSH VARDHAN BASSI
UDIN NO.20111780AAAAAF7808 ) Director

DIN NO.00102941



Crystal Lace (India) Limited

Regd Office: 101-B, Abhishek Premises, Plot No. C5-6, Dalia Industrial Estate,
Off New Link Road, Andheri (W), Mumbai 400058
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Rs. in lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
March 212000 March 31,2012
March 31,2020
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit/ (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (14.89) : (20.64)
Adjustment for ; ‘
Depreciation and amortisation 9.96 . 9.96
Operating Profit/ (Loss) before working capital changes (a93) (10.68)
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assels:
Inventories 5135 2507
Trade Receivables (47.84) (1270
Other Receivables 1.26 (2.51)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade Payables 027 {6.54)
Other Current Lizbilities - . (0.01)
5.04 3.31
Cash generated from operation 0.11 (737)

Net income tax (paid) / refunds - - -

Net Cash from Qperating Activities 0.11 I (7.37)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets (net of advance) -

Interest Received - Others -
Net cash from / (used) in Investing Activities I - |:;—_|
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Proceeds from /(Repayment) of Long Term Borrowing {Net) -
Net increase / {decrease) in Short Term Borrowings -

Interest Paid -
Net cash used in Financing Activities [ - L -1

Net increase/ (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C) 0.11 (737}

Cash and Cash Equivalent 0.84 8.21

(Opening balances)

Cash and Cash Equivalent 0.95 0.84

(Closing balances)

Note: The above Cash Flow Statement reflects the combined cash flows pertaining to continuing and discontinuing operations

As per our Report of even date attached herewith
For Parag G. Shah & Associates,

Chartered Accountants For & gn behalf of the Board
(Firm Regn No. 122408W) v\ LL\__
Ty 2 Rd]/I(UMAR SEKHANI
a1 %\:v;'-‘ Chairman & Managing Director
DIN NO. 00102843
Parag G. Shah )
Proprietor
Membership No. 111780 . HARS N BASSI
Place: Mumbai Director
- "DIN NO.00102941

Date: June 29, 2020
UDIN NO.20111780A A A A AF7808 Y



Crystal Lace (India) Limited

Regd Office: 101-B, Abhishek Premises, Plot No. C5-6, Dalia Industral Fstate,

Off New Link Road, Andheri (W), Mambai 400058

Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended Marchr 31, 2020

{Rs. in lakhs)

{3) Equity Share Capital ;
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 3%, 2019

No., of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

Balance at the beginning of the year 9,870,370 987.04 9,870,370 987.04
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 9,870,370 987.4 9,870,370 9§7.04

(&) Other Equity ;
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total

Security Preminm Revaluation Reserve Relained Eamnings

Balance at April 1, 2018 376.30 727.21 (1,784.07) (680.56)
Profit / (Loss) for the year - - (20.64) (20.64)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - -
Total Comprehensive Incame for the year 376.30 727.21 (1,804.71) (701.20)
Less: Depreciation on revaluation reserve - 13.65 - 13.65
Balance at March 31, 2019 376.30 713.56 {1,804.71) (714.85)
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period 376.30 713.56 (1,804.71) (714.85)
Profit / (Loss) for the year ’ - (14.89) {14.89)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 376.30 713,56 (1,819.60) (729.74)
Less: Depreciation on revaluation reserve - 13.65 - 13.65
Balance at March 31, 2020 376,30 699,91 (1,819.60) (743.39)

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even dale For Pang G.
Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountanls
{Firm Regn No, 122403W)

T.e-v i
o2 é\jgf

Parag C. Shah
Proprietor

Membership No. 111780
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 29, 2020
UDIN NO.20111780A AA A AF7808

For & on behalf of the Board

%m_

J KUMAR SEKHANI

HA

Birector

DIN NC.00102843
NS

VA AN BASSI
Director

DIN NC.00102941



Crystal Lace (India) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2020

1 Reporting Entity
Crystal Lace (India) Limited s an Indian company incorporated on February 04,1994 is registered with the Registrar of Companies;,
Mumbai vide registration number 11-76439. The registered office of the Company is situated at Plot No. 27, Millennium Business
Park, TTIC Industrial Arca, Mahape, Navi Mumbai 400710,
The main objects for which the Company was incorporated is to carry on business as manufacturers, processors, designers,
painters, itnporters, exporters, stockists agents, brokers and dealers in all kinds of laces including knitted, felted and woven laca,

2.1 Basis of Preparation
The standalone financial statements of Crystal Lace (india) Limited (“the Company”} comply in all material aspects with Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), as notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
{Amendment) Rules, 2016 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standards is initially adopted or a
Tevision to an existing accounting standard required a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

22 Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accerual basis and the following items, which

are measured on following basis on each Teporting date:
- Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value.
- Defined benefit Liability/ {assets): present value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
parlicipants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company take into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are gbservable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in
its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the company can access at the
measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that zre observable for the asset or Liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or Liability.

23 Functional and Presentation Curren
—=ziohat and Fresentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian MNational Rupee {'INR’), which is the Company’s funchonal cwrrency, Al
amounts have been rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4 Use of Judgements and Estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of the company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Management believes
that the estimates used in the Ppreparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.
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Judgements

Information about the judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognised in the finandal statements have been given below:

- Classification of leases into finance and operating lease

- Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assels are held and assessment of whether the
contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the
financial statements for the every period ended is included below:

= Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions; :

- Recognition of deferred tax assots: availability of future taxable profit against which carry-forward tax losses can be used;

- Impairment test: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts;

- Useful life and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment;

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an
outflow of resources;

- Impairment of financial assets: key assumptions used in estimating recoverable cash flows.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset/liabilities is
treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised/settled (liabilities) or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised /settled within bwelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash and Cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period or there is no unconditional right to defer the setflement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets/liabilities.

The operating cycle is the Hme between the acquisition of the assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Fixed Assels)

Recognition and Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss , if any.
The cost of assets comprises of purchase price and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working condition for its
intended use including borrowing cost and incidental expenditure during construction incurred upto the date when the assets are
ready to use. Capital work in progress includes cost of assets at sites, construction expenditure and interest on the funds deployed
less any impairment loss, if any.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as a
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in Statement of Profit and loss,

Subsequent Measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that there is an Increase in the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on Straight Line Method using the rates arrived at on the basis of estimated useful lives given in
Schedule M of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on additions to or on disposal of assets is calculated on pro-rata basis. Leasehold land is being amortised over the
period of lease tenure.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed in each finandal year end and changes, if any, are accounted
for prospectively. :

Individual assets costing below Rs. 5000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

Capital work-in-progress
Expenditure incurred during the construction period, including all expenditure direct and indirect expenses, incidental and related
to construction, is carried forward and on completion, the costs are allocated to the Tespective property, plant and equipment,




De-recognition

Anitem of property, plant and equipment s de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset, Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.7 Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets (Other than Goodwill) acquired separately are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment !o'_.ss,
if any. Intangible assets are amortized on straight line method basis over the estimated useful life. Estimated useful life of the
Software is considered as 10 years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed in each financial year end and changes, if any, are accounted
for prospectively.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no Fubure economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised,

2.8 Non-current Assets held for Sale
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Non-current assets are classified as held-for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through saie rather
than through continuing use.

Such assets are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. An impairment loss is
recognised for any initfal or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less casts to sell. A gain is recognised for any
subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously
recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset is recognised at the date of de-
recognition

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assots and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortised or depreciated.

Impairment of Noa-financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than inventories and deferred
tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication on impairment. If any such indication exists, then the recoverable amount
of assels is estimated,

For-impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assels or Cash Generating Unit (CGUs).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, Value in use is
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment loss in respect of assets other than goodwill is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of deprediation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised in prior years. A reversal of im pairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such
assets upto the assets are substantially ready for their intended use.

The loan erigination costs directly attributable to the acquisition of borrowings (e.g. loan processing fee, upfront fee) are amortised
on the basis of the Effective Intcrest Rate (EIR) method over the term of the loan.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred,

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction frst qualifics for recognition, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency are franslated to the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items ars recagnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with
the exception of the following:

- exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings included in the borrowing cost when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings; . -

- In respect of long term foreign cuirency monetary items recognised in the finarcial statements for the period ending immediately
before the beginning of the first Ind as financial reporting period, the Company- has elecfed to recognise exchange differences on
translation of such long term foreign currency monetary items in line with its, Previous GAAP accounting policy.




Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date of
initia] transactions. Non-monetary items measure at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dafe when the fair value is determined.

212 Emplgyee Benefiks
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Short term employee benefits

Shori-term employee benefits are expensed in the year in which the related services are provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans
Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund are defined as contribution plan and charged as expenses during the period in
which the employees perform the services.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with ach_.xaria]
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The present value of the defined benefit gbligation is

determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government bonds.

The effect of the remeasurement changes {comprising actuarial gains and losses) to the asset ceiling {if applicable) and the retumn
on plan assets {excluding interest), is reflected in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
other equity and will not be reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the
period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categarised as follows: :

* service cost (including current service cost, Past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

* net interest expense or income; and

* remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the line item
employee benefits expense.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined
benefit plans, Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the
form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company has long term employment benefit plans ie. accumulated leave. Accumulated leave is encashed to eligible
employees at the time of retirement. The liability for accumulated leave, which is a defined benefit scheme, is provided based on
actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date, based on Projected Unit Credit Method, carried out by an independent actuary.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognises revenue from sale of goods when;

i) the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

i) the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

iti) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

iv) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with Lhe transaction will flow to the Company; and

v} the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue (other than sale of goods) is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Claim on insurance companies, interest and others, where quantum of accrual
cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty, are accounted for on acceptance basis.

Revenuce represents net value of goods and services provided to customers after deducting for certain incentives including, but not
limited to discounts, volume rebates, incentive programs etc.

Interest income are recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
Dividends are recognised at the time the right to receive payment is established.




214 Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable vahze except waste/scrap which is valued at net realisable value. Cost of
finished goods and stock in process is determined by taking cost of purchases, material consumed, labour and related overheads,
Cost of raw malerials and stores & spare parts is computed on weighted average basis. Net realisable vatue is the estimated selling
Pprice in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and to make the sale,

215 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Based on the best estimate provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable (“more likely than not”) that it is required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation at reporting date.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from a past event, with the resolution of the contingency dependent on
uncertain future events, or a present obligation where no outflow is probable. Major contingent liabilities are disclosed in the
financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of economic resources is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the finandal statements but disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

216 Measurement of Fair Value

a) Financial instruments

The estimated fair value of the Company’s financial instruments is based on market prices and valuation techniques. Valuations
are made with the objective to include relevant factors that market participants would consider in setting a price, and to apply
accepted economic and finandal methodologies for the pricing of financial instruments. References for less active markets are
carefully reviewed to establish relevant and comparable data.

b} Marketable and non-marketable equity securities

Fair value for quoted securities is based on quoted market prices as of the reporting date. Fair value for unquoted securities is
calculated based on commonly accepted valuation techniques utilizing significant unobservable data, primarily cash flow based
models. If fair value cannot be measured reliably unlisted shares are recognized at cost.

217 Financial Instruments

a.,

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
ioss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classifications
The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value depending on the
company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the finandal assets,

Financial assets at amartised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,

- the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate
(‘EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance income n the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income {FVOCI)

Finandal assets with contractual cash flow characteristics that are solely payments of principal and interest and held in a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assels are classified to be
measured at FVOCI,

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Any Finandial assets, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCT, is classified as at
FVTPL. .

In addition, the company may elect to classify a Financial assets, which otherwise meets amortized cost or, FVOCT criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates 2 measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as ‘accounting mismatcy),

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair valge with all changes recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. .




Equity Instruments

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value, On initial recognition an equity investment that is no
held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in QCI. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis.

All other Financial Instruments are classified as measured at FVTPL

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a finandial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.c. removed from the company’s balance sheet) when;

- The rights to receive cash Aows from the asset have expired, or

- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a} the company has
transferred substantially- all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither ransferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognize the
transferred. asset to the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

company has retained.

Continuing invelvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to
the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (1) the consideration received (including any new asset cbtained less an)—w new
liability assumed} and {ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCT is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Impairment of financial assels
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses assodiated with its assets carried at amortised cost and
FVOCL The impairment methotdology applied depends on whether there has beer a significant increase in credit risk.

With regard to trade receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach as permitted by Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial recognition of the trade reccivables.

- Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, amortised cost, as
appropriate,
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the ELR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amorlisalion process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Finandial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include financiai liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit and loss.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit and loss are designated as such at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For Liabilities desigrated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
atiributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to the
Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Com pany may transfer the cumulative gain or Igss within equity. All other changes in
fair value of such liability are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss: .

Derecognition of financial liabilities ]
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire,




2.18 Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised directly in Equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax Payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a) Has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b} Intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and fiabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.In view uncertainty to have taxable itcome in immediate future as prudent, no defer tax assets are
recognised for the year.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the lability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be
recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and included in deferred tax
assets, The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT entitlement to the
extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

219 Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception
of the lease. The arrangement is {or contains) a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets and the arrangement conveys a tight to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

The Company as lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is dassified as finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is Tecognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company recognises a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term
leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less} and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Company
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. Contingent and
variable rentals are recognized as expense in the periods in which they are incurred. ’

Lease Liability

The lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

* Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments) payable during the lease term and under reasonably certain
extension opHons, less any lease incentives;

* Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initiaily measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;

* The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
* The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; an

:
* Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminat

(=9

T 0

The lease Liability is presented as a separate line in the Balance Sheet.
The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made, B

The Company remeasures the lease liability {and makes a corresponding adjustmént to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

= The lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

* A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

Right of Use (ROU) Assets

The ROU assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the
commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Whenever the company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located
or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and
measured under Ind AS 37- Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The costs are included in the related right-of-
use asset.

ROU assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If the company is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. The
depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease,

The ROU assets are not presented as a separate line in the Balance Sheet but presented below similar owned assets as a separate
line in the PPE nete under “Notes forming part of the Financial Stalement”.

The Company applies Ind AS 36- Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment loss as per its accounting policy on ‘property, plant and equipment’.

As a practical expedient, Ind AS 116 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components when bifurcation of the payments is
not available between the two compoenents, and instead account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single
arrangement. The Company has used this practical expedient,

Extension and termination options are included in many of the leases. In determining the [ease term the management considers all
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to excrcise an extension option, or not exerdse a lermination opton.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents is as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. In
the balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrewings in current liabilities.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The board of directors of the Company has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker by the Management
of the Company.

2.22 Standard issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MICA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such
notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.




Crystal Lace {India) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2020

{Rs. in lakhs)
. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
3. Other Non Current Financial Assets
Security Deposits 201 2.05
201 2.05
4. Inventories
{Valued at cost as verified and Certified by the Management)
Raw Materia! 041 . 041
Packing Material - 0.36
Store & Consumables 259 2.59
Finished Goods 344.96 395.95
347.96 399.31

4.1 The inventory is stated at cost and in absence of information about its realisable value, no adjustments
have been done in accounts, Impact, if any, would be done in the year of disposal and/ or written off

sithseanentv

5. Trade Receivables
Debts Quistanding for a period exceeding six months

Unsecured, considered good 113.45 65.61
Unsecured, considered doubtful 2316 2316
Less Provisions (23.16) (23.16)

113.45 65.61

5.1 Debtors include outstanding due from Hakoba Lifestyle Limited, subsidiary of the related Party Pioneer
Embroideries Limited amounting to Rs.32.06 (Previous year Rs. 32.06 outstanding since June 2010).

6. Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks:

Current Accounlts 0.50 0.39
Cash on Hand 0.45 0.45
095 0.8¢
7. Other Current Financial Assets
Unsecured, Considered Good:
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 186.65 188.20
Prepaid Expenses 0.32 -
186.97 188.20
8. Current Tax Asset
Advance Taxes & TDS 0.28 0.28
0.28 0.28
9. Assets held for sale
Land 69506 705.74
Building 108.20 123,72
803.86 827.46
N




Crystal Lace (India) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2020
Rs. in lakhs)

10, Share Capital
{3) Details of Authorised, Issued and Subscribed Share Capital:

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
-Particulars
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares

Authorised ;
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 25,000,000 2,500.00 25,000,000 250,000,000.00
Issued, subscribed & Paid up '
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 9,870,370 987.04 9,870,370 . 987.04

9,870,370 987.04 9,870,370 987.04
{b) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year;
As at the beginning of the financial year 9,870,370 987.04 9,870,370 987.04
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Asat the end of the financial year 9,870,370 987.04 9,870,370 987.04

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares:
The Company has one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per

share held. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Anrual General Meeting. In the case of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of ail preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Details of Equity Shareholding more than 5% in the Co mpany on reporting date:

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Class of shares / Name of Number of shares % holding in that Number of % holding in that
shareholder held class of shares shares held class of shares
Pioneer Embroideries Ltd. 4,400,000 44.58 4,400,000 44.58
Picreer E-com Fashions LLP 3,491,420 35.36 3,491,420 3536
Crystal Holding Limited 974,990 9.88 974,990 9.88
Raj Kumar Sekhani 500,003 5.07 500,003 5.07
Miaann Holdings Limited 503,940 511 503,940 511




Crystal Lace (India) Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2020

(Rs. in lakhs)
. Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
11. Other Equity
Security Premium
Balance as at the beginning of the year 37630 376.30
Revaluation Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 713.56 727.21
Less: Depreciation on Revalued Assets 13.65 13.65
Balance as at the end of the year 699.91 713.56
{Refer Note 19 & 20 to Notes on Accounts) :
Retained Eamnings :
Balance as at the beginning of the year (1,804.71) (1,784.07)
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year (14.8%) (20.64)
Balance as at the end of the year (1,519.60) (1,804.71)
(74339) {714.85)

Nature and purpose of other reserves/ other equity

Securities Premium: This Reserve represents premium received on issue of shares and can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. ' .

Refained Earnings : Retained eamnings are profits carmed by the Company after transfer to general reserve and payment of dividend to
shareholders.

12 Trade Payables

For Goods and Services

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises N

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 160.67 160.40

160.67 160.40

Based on the information available, there are certain vendors who have confirmed that they are covered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Disclosures relating to dues of Micro and Small enterprises under section 22 of ‘The Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, are given below:

a) Principal amount and Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of year

b) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along with the amounts of
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

¢) Theamount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been

paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under

this Act - -
d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year -
e} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such

date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of this Act - -

13. Other Current Financial Liabilities

For Others 113 113
Statutory Dues 0.03 0.03
1.16 1.16

The balances of Sundry Creditors for expenses are subject to reconciliation and confirmation.

14. Other Cuwurent Liabilities

Capital advances - 1,050.00 1,050.00
1,050.00 1.050.00
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2020

{Bs. in lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
15. 5ale of Products - Yarn, Embroidery Fabric & Laces
Domestic Sales 53.47 17.12
5347 17.12
16. Change in inventories
At the end of the perfod :
Finished Goods 34497 395.96
At the beginning of the period '
Finished Goods 395.96 421.03
50.99 25.07
17. Employee Benfit Expenses
Salary , Wages and Incentives ‘ 144 -
18. Other Expenses
Auditors Remuneration 0.30 0.30
Bank Charges 0.01 0.01
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.41 0.28
Packing Material Consumed 0.36 -
Insurance Charges 035 0.07
Legal & Proffesional 3.60 024
Rates & Taxes .04 0.03
Rent 050 1.80
597 2.73




CRYSTAL LACE ( INDIA ) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 51, 2020

(Rs, in lakhs)
Ba. Assets held For sale:
GROSS BLOCK DEFRECIATION NET BLOCK,
5. |PARTICULARS As al DEDUCTION/] A5 at As at DEDUCTION/] At at Asat | " asa
No. Aprill,2019 | ADDITION | ADJUSTMENTS| March 31,2028 | April1, 2m9 ] ADDITION | REVALUATION | ADJUSTMENTS| March 31, 2020 | March 01, 20200 | March 1, 2019
Lang 81 - - B3 125 0.40 5.68 . 135 696 706
Bullding En B B 84 267 956 39 - ] 108 122
Tatal 1214 - - 1,214 187 9.% 1165 - 410 B 827
a) The value of Jeasehold land is being amortized over the unexpired period of lease from financial year 1997-98.
b) Depreciation is provided on fixed assets aver the remaining useful |ife in accordance with the pravisions of Schedule [l of the AcL
€} Land & Building , Lhe only assels an: heid for disposal. The revall reserve and imy loss, if any, woulil be reversed/ provided in the year of sale.
GROSS BLOK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
5. [PARTICULARS As al DEDUCTION/] As 2t As al DEDUCTION/ As al AS at | As al
No. Aprill, 2018 ) ADDITION | ADJUSTMENTS| March 51, 2019 Aprill, 2018 | ADDITEON | REVALUATION | ADJUSTMENTS| March 31, 2019 [ March 11, 2019 | April1, 203
Land 33 £31 115 040 [ - 125 06 716
Building 84 i 248 9.56 39 - 361 12 15
Tolal 1,214 1,714 353 9.96 1163 - 387 [ 851

a) The value of leasehold lund is bring amortized over the unexpired perind of lease

[rom financial year 1997.98.
b) Deprecislion is provided on fixad assels over the Temaining useful Sife in accordance with the provisions of Schedule IF of the AcL

) Land & Building , Lhe only assets are held for disposal. The revaluation reserve and impairement loss, if any, would be reversed/ provided in the year of sae.
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Crystal Lace (India) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2020
{Rs. in lakhs)

Contingent Liabilities ;
As per of the Management, there is no contingent liability and adequate provision has been made for all known liabilities.

Sale of Fixed Assets:
The potential buyer has paid an advance of Rs. 1,050 (in previous year Rs. 1,050 ). The Company is in advance stages of discussion for
f

the sale of remaining part of the assets. Impact of the sale would be accounted on completeion of conveyance with the potential buyer.

Impairment of Assets :
Since realisable value of balance assets comprising of Land & Building, exceeds the carrying amount of Rs. 133.83, in view of
management, no provision for impairment of assets is required to be made in the financial statements.

The Company openting in single segment had decided to discontinue its .manufacturi.ng operations at the plant in the preceeding
financial year 2014-2015. Effective financial year 2015-16, Company is engaged in trading activities,

a) Description of Discontinuing Operations:

i) The Company had set -up a manufacturing plant at Plot No.27, TTC Indl. Area, MIDC, Mahape, Navi Mumbai for manufacture of
laces.

ii) The Company started incurring losses from the year 2008-09 due to labour problems resulting in complete closure of Factory with
various cases filed within labour Court and the networth of the Company was completely eroded in financial year 2009 due to losses.
Accordingly, Company had decided to discountinue its manufacturing operation at the Plantin accordance with the undertaking given
to the Court,

i{i) During the year 2013, the management of Comparny had entered into memorandum of understanding for sale of its Land & building
and subsequently started settling labour cases.

iv) The Company started disposing of its plant & machinery in the year 2014 & 2015 and also part of its Land & Building,

b) Business or Geographical segment:

Company is engaged only in textile industry for manufacture of laces. This is the only Business Segment of the Company.

c) Date & Nature of Initial Disclosure:

The date & nature of such disclosure is deseribed as under:
1) The Company sold its part plant & machinery in the year 2014 and balance in 2015 to related party Pioneer Embroideries Limited,

li) The proceeds from sale of part of Land & Building was utilised for settling labour cases within court & meeting administrative

expenses of the Company.
iif) Till March 2016, the Company has entered into Memorandum of Understanding for sale of its balance portion of land & building

“subject to various terms & conditions including transfer of clear title and price is being finalised.

d) Date or period in which the discontinuance is expected to be completed if known or determinable:

The management of the Company has already initiated steps towards sale. However the date or period in which the discontinuation is
expected (o be completed is not determinable as on date as the process for sale has not been completed in respect of the land & building
till March 31, 2020.

e) Carrying amounts, as of the balance sheet date, of the fotal assets and total liabilities to be disposed of are as under:

f) Details of total assets are as under:

As at As at

Fixed Assets (at reveviewed figures) March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(i) Land (Lease Hold) 695.67 705.74
Building 108.20 121.72
Total Assets B03.87 82746

The amounts of other assets comprising of Other Assets and Liabilities are routine transactions which in view of the management not
likely to be settled or disposed off. Hence the carrying amount of the other Assets and liabilities are as stated in the relevant Notes
appended to the Financials.
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Crystal Lace (India) Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2020
{Rs. in lakhs)

£) The amount of revenue and expenses in respect of the ordinary activities attributable to the discontinuing operation during the
current financial reporting period are as under :

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Other Income -
Depreciation on Assets 9.96 3.96
Other Expenses - -
Profit /{Loss) from discontinuing operations {5.96) (9.96)

As per Management, only those income & expense directly attributable to discontinuing operations are considered. Income &
Expenses to be incurred on account of routine transactions are considered under normal operations.

Taxes including Deferred Tax :
As there is no virtually certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available, as a prudent consideration, the Company has not
provided for any income tax benefits including deferred tax assets for the period under review.

Related Party Transactions as per AS 18 (as identified by Management and relied by Auditors):
List of related Farties with whom transaction have taken place and relationship:

Name of the Related Parties Nature of Relationship
Pioneer Embroideries Ltd. Associate Company
Mr.Raj Kumar Sekhani Director

Mr.Harsh Vardhan Bassi Director

Transactions during the year
Sale of Goods 53.08 4.34
Purchase of goods -

Ou tstanding Balance
Pioneer Embroideries Ltd 57.32Dr. 9.68Dr.
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{Rs. in lakhs)
26 Financial instruments
I.  Fair value measurements
A. Financial instruments by category
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables - 11345 - 65.61
Cash and cash equivaients - 0.95 - 084
Cthers
Non Current - 201 - 205
Current - 1586.97 - 188.20
- 30338 - 256.70
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 160.67 - 16040
Other current financial liabilities - . 1.16 - 116
- 161.83 - 161.56

The carrying amounts of the abovementioned financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be the same as
their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

B, Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that
are;
(2) recognised and measured at fair value and
{b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified
its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanalion of each level
follows .

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity
instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including
bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an ackve market (for example, traded bonds, over-
the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.

There are no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year.

I1. Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk;
- liquidity risk; and
- market risk

i Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. The board of directors has established the processes to ensure that executive management
controls risks through the mechanism of property defined framework.

The Company’s risk mana gement policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed by the board annually to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciptined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.




(Rs. in lakhs)
iL. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers,
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The Company monitor credit risk very
closely both in domestic and export market. The Manzgement impact analysis shows credit risk and impact assessment
as low,

Trade and other receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit tisk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
However, management also cansiders the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the
default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade and
other receivables. The management uses a simplified approach for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss
for trade receivables

The carrying amount net of credit loss allowances of trade receivables is Rs. 65.61 (March 31, 2018- Rs. 52.91),

ii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputation. Prudent liquidity risk management implics maintaining suffictent cash and marketable
securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations
when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company treasury
maintains flexibility in funding by mainta ining availability wunder committed credit lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position {comprising the undrawn borrowing,
facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of ex pected future cash flows, This is generally carried out at unit
level and monitored through caproate office of the Company in accordance with practice and limits set by the
Company. These limits vary by location to take into account Tequirement, future cash flow and the liquidity in which
the entity operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management strategy involves projecting cash flows in major
currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios
against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

(b} Maturities of financial liabilities
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are
gross and undiscounted, and exclude contractual interest payments and the impact of netting agreements.

Particulars Carrying Contractual cash flows
Amounts Total 0-1 Year 1-3 years
March 31, 2020
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 160.67 160.67 160.67 -
Other current financial liabilities 1.16 1.16 1.16 -
Total non-derivative liabilities 161.83 161.83 161.83 -
Particulars Carrying Conlractual cash flows
Amounts Total 0-1Year 1-3 years

March 31, 2019

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payables 160.40 160.40 160.40 -
Other current financial liabilities 1.16 ‘1,16 1.16 -
Total non-derivative liabilities 161.56 161.56 161.56 -

The inflows/ (cutflows) disclosed in the above table represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to
financial liabilities held for liquidity / credit management purposes and which are not usually closed out before
contractual maturity. .

The interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the table above reflect market forward interest rates at the




iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates - will affect the
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

v. Currency risk
The Compary does not have foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions.

vi. Interest rate risk .
The Company does not have interest rate risk arising from borrowings.
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27 a. Balances of certain trade receivables, advances, trade payables and other liabilities are in the process of confirmation and/ or reconciliation.

b. Realisable value of current assets, deposits, loans and advances in the ordinary course of business will be at least equal to the amount at which they
have been stated in the financial stalements,

<. Same of the fixed deposits and bank accounts are subject to confirmations though reconciled with available bank statements. Some of Lhe secured
loans are alsa subject to confirmations though reconciled with bank statements.

l#

Serment Renorting

ShgeTes SApSiiSe

According to ind AS 105, identification of operating segments is based on Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) approach for mal.:ing decisions
about allocating resources to the segment and assessing its performance. The business activity of the company falls within one broad business segment
viz. “Textile” and substantially sale of the product is within the country. The Gross income and profit from the other segment is below Lhe nomms

prescribed in Ind AS 108. Hence, the disclosure requirement of Ind AS 108 of ‘Segment Reporting’ is not considered applicable.

29 Capital managemenl
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base 5o as lo maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and lo sustain future development
of the business. Management monitors the relurn on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders. The following table summarises
the capital of the Company :

Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Equity Share Capital 487.04 987.04
Other Equity _ [743.39) {71485}
Tolal Equity i 243.65 27219
Tofal Debls - -
Less: Cash & Cash Equivalents 0.95 084
Net Debts 0.95) (0.84)
Capital & Nel Debts 24270 27135
Capital Gearing Ratio 0% 0%
30 Eaming per Equily Share:
Particulars March 31, 2020 { March 31, 2019
Net Profit / (Loss) for the year (14.89) (20.64)]
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each {fully paid-up) 9,870,370 9,870,370
- Basic (Rs.) {0-15) (@.21)
- Diluted {Rs.} {0.15) (0.21)

31 Previous year figure have been regrouped/ reclassified to confirm to current years classifcations.
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